
TOWN OF SMITHFIELD 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

AGENDA PACKET 

Chairman: Sarah Edwards 
Vice-Chairman: Jeremy Pearce 

Monique Austin 
Thomas Bell 

Stephen Wensman, AICP, RLA, Planning Director 
Micah Woodard, CZO Planner I 

Julie Edmonds, Administrative Assistant 

Meeting Date: Thursday, March 27, 2025 
Meeting Time: 6:00 p.m. 
Meeting Place: Council Chambers, Smithfield Town Hall 





AGENDA 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

REGULAR MEETING 
MARCH 27TH, 2025 

MEETING TIME: 6:00 PM 
TOWN HALL 

 
 
 
Call to Order. 
 
Approval of the minutes for January 30th, 2025. 
 
Public Hearing. 
 
BA-25-01: Location of pool and fence variance, the property owner at 833 Country Club Road, further 
identified by the Johnston County Tax ID 15J11023P, is requesting variance from the Unified 
Development Ordinance Section 7.3 to allow a swimming pool and associated fence/wall to be located 
in the side yard. 
  
Old Business. 
 
New Business. 
  
Adjournment. 
 



 

1 
 

              Smithfield 
Board of Adjustment Draft Minutes 

Thursday, January 30th, 2025 
6:00 P.M. Town Hall,  

Council Chambers 
 
Members Present:        Members Absent: 
Sarah Edwards, Chairman        
Jeremy Pearce, Vice Chairman 
Thomas Bell 
Monique Austin  
 
Staff Present:              Staff Absent: 
Stephen Wensman, Planning Director  
Julie Edmonds, Admin Support Specialist 
           
CALL TO ORDER 
Approval of minutes from August 29th, 2024 
Jeremy Pearce made a motion, seconded by Monique Austin to approve the minutes as written. Unanimously 
approved 
 
Approval of 2025 Meeting Schedule 
Monique Austin made a motion to approve the 2025 Meeting Schedule; seconded by Tom Bell. Unanimously 
approved. 
 
Open Public Hearing 
Jeremy Pearce made a motion to open the public hearing; seconded by Monique Austin. Unanimously approved. 
  
BA-24-09 Curated Collections Sign: Curated Collections of NC, LLC is requesting a 6’ variance to the Town of 
Smithfield Unified Development Ordinances, Article 10, Section 10.25.2.3.5.1, to allow for a reduced monument 
sign setback. This property is located at 259 Venture Drive, 250 feet south of the intersection with Peedin Road. 
This property is further identified by Johnston County Tax ID# 15L11008T. 
 
Stephen Wensman stated the board is being asked to review a 6’ sign setback variance to allow a new multi-tenant 
sign to be placed near the public right-of-way. The property considered for a variance is located at 259 Venture 
Drive south of the intersection with Peedin Road. This property has been remodeled as a multi-tenant commercial 
building, consisting of retail, services, and churches. The site was developed years ago without standard 15’ wide 
street yard landscaping and with the paved parking/drive lane located 5 feet back from the public right of way. The 
changes in use have necessitated the need for a multitenant sign, however the current sign setback of ten feet is 
not feasible. The proposed sign is roughly 1’ wide at the base. With the variance, the sign will be 4 feet from the 
property line and 22’ from the back-of-curb, The location will not impact ingress/egress at this site and should look 
harmonious from the street view. There is an existing legal non-conforming sign for the nail salon tenant that will 
be removed if the new sign is permitted. 
  
Planning Staff recommends the Board of Adjustment approve the 6-foot setback variance for a multi-tenant sign 
with the condition that the old sign will be removed. 
 
Jeremy Pearce made a motion to close BA-24-09, seconded by Monique Austin. Unanimously approved. 
 
Thomas Bell made a motion to approve variance BA-24-09 with one condition that the non-conforming sign be 
removed granting a 6-foot variance from the sign setback, based on the 4 finding of fact; seconded by Jeremy 
Pearce. Unanimously approved. (comment/vote on each): 
 
1. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the Ordinance. 
2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or topography. 



 

2 
 

3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. 
4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the Ordinance, such that public 
safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.   
 
Old Business. 
None  
 
Adjournment. 
Monique Austin made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Jeremy Pearce. Unanimously approved. 
 
Julie Edmonds 

 
Administrative Support Specialist 
Town of Smithfield Planning Department 



 

Request for 
Board of 
Adjustment 
Action 

Agenda 
Item: BA-25-01 

Date: 3/27/25 
  

 

Subject: Lynda Carroll Pool and Fence Variance 
Department: Planning  

Presented by: Micah Woodard, CZO, Planner I 
Presentation: Public Hearing 

 
Issue Statement  

 To review a variance from the Unified Development Ordinance, Section 7.3 to allow 
a swimming pool in the side/front yards and the associated masonry wall to be 
greater than 4’ tall in the front yard. 

Financial Impact 

 None. 

Action Needed 

 To hold an evidentiary hearing, review the variance request and decide whether to 
approve, approve with conditions, or deny.  

Recommendation 

 Planning Staff recommends approval of the variance, Case no. BA-25-01, based 
on the finding of fact. 

 

  
Approved:  Town Manager  Town Attorney 
 

Attachments: 
• Staff Report  
• Finding of Fact 
• Application 
• Site Plan 

  



 
Page 2 

 

 

Staff 
Report 
 

Agenda  
Item: 

BA-25-01 
 

  
  

 
 

REQUEST:       
The property owner, Lynda Carroll, residing at 833 Country Club Road, further identified 
by the Johnston County Tax ID 15J11023P, is requesting variance from the Unified 
Development Ordinance Section 7.3 to allow a swimming pool in the side & front yard 
and associated masonry fence/wall in the front yard to be greater than 4’ tall. 
 
PROJECT LOCATION: 
The property considered for variance is located across the street from the country club 
golf course on Holts Lake. 
 
CASE DATA: 
Applicant/Owner: Lynda Carroll 
Tax ID#: 15J11023P 
Town/ETJ: ETJ  
Acreage: 0.292 acres 
Present Zoning: R-20A (Residential-Agriculture) 
Existing Use:       Detached single-family home 
Water Service: Johnston County 
Sewer Service: Septic 
Electrical Service: Duke 
 
ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USE: 
  Zoning Existing Use 
North R-20A Recreation 
South: N/A N/A 
West: R-20A Detached Single-Family 
East: R-20A Detached Single-Family 

 



 
Page 3 

 

ANALYSIS: 
This property is located on Holts Lake and the rear yard is impacted by riparian buffer 
regulations, floodway, 100-year and 500-year flood plain which prohibits any use of the 
rear yard for accessory structures or uses such as a swimming pool. The Unified 
Development Ordinance Section 7.3 requires pools to be in the rear yard and fences in 
front of the principal structure to be no taller than 4 feet.   The proposed pool will be in 
the side yard and will extend into the front yard.  The pool will be screened from the 
public right-of-way by a +/- 6 foot tall masonry wall.  Without the variance, there would 
be no location available for the pool and the fence would be prohibited. 
 
STAFF FINDING OF FACT FOR VARIANCE: 
To approve a variance, the Board of Adjustments shall find all of the following provisions 
can be met (Staff’s finding are in bold/ italic)(the applicant’s finding are in the report 
packet): 
1. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the Ordinance. It shall 
not be necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use 
can be made of the property. In absence of this variance, the applicant w ill not 
be able to construct a pool and the associated masonry wall, which are 
reasonable accessory uses/ structures on a residential property. 
2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, 
size, or topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as 
hardships resulting from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general 
public, may not be the basis for granting a variance. The back yard is heavily 
impacted by environmental features and regulations which prohibit the use of 
the back yard for the sw imming pool. The impacts are not the result of 
personal circumstances. 
3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. 
The act of purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify 
the granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship. This site 
was developed decades ago and legal restrictions were imposed on the 
property afterwards. The hardship is not self-created. 
4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the 
Ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved. The 
variance is consistent w ith the spirit, purpose and intent of the ordinance in 
that the applicant w ill be screening the pool w ith an architecturally pleasing 
masonry wall that w ill blend into the architecture of the home. 
 
 
 



 
Page 4 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Staff recommends the Board of Adjustment approve variance from the Unified 
Development Ordinance to allow the construction of a pool in the side/front yard and to 
allow a fence/masonry wall greater than 4’ in height in the front yard, based on the 4 
finding of fact (comment/vote on each): 
1. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the Ordinance.  
2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as 

location, size, or topography.  
3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property 

owner.  
4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the 

Ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
“Move to approve variance BA-25-01 granting a variance from UDO Section 7.3 to allow 
the construction of a pool in the side/front yard and to allow a fence/masonry wall greater 
than 4’ in height in the front yard, based on the 4 finding of fact”  
 
(Vote on each finding) 

























CARROLL LIVING TRUST
CARROLL, MICHAEL W TRUSTEE
833 COUNTRY CLUB RD
SMITHFIELD, NC 27577-8306

HOLT LAKE GOLF AND RECREATION
694 COUNTRY CLUB RD
SMITHFIELD, NC 27577-8392

ELSEE, ALLISON S.
911 COUNTRY CLUB RD
SMITHFIELD, NC 27577-8308

8182 PROPERTIES, LLC
833 COUNTRY CLUB RD
SMITHFIELD, NC 27577-8306

CARROLL LIVING TRUST
883 COUNTRY CLUB RD
SMITHFIELD, NC 27577-8306

HOLT LAKE LLC
PO BOX 2504
SMITHFIELD, NC 27577-2504

NOTE: Turn off 'Fit to Page' in print dialog before
printing.

Label Type: AV5160
6 label(s) printed

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

http://www.tcpdf.org

	Blank Page



